
GULF BREEZE CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
MAY 16, 2016 

          MONDAY, 6:30 P.M. 
  COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

  
1. ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 

May 2, 2016, Regular meeting 
May 2, 2016, Community Redevelopment Agency Board of Directors meeting 
May 11, 2016, Informal Workshop 
  

3. PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS 
  

4. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES 
   
Ordinance No. 04-16  Amending Section 21-49, Section 21-69, Section 21-84, and 

Section 21-99 pertaining to setbacks on corner lots 
     (FIRST READING) 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS* 
 

A. Approval of Development Review Board Recommendation: 

 Charles and Carol Lee Severs, 117 Chanteclaire Circle  
 Request to construct a vinyl seawall  

 
B. Authorization to prepare a request for bids for a dredging and sand transportation firm to 

complete dredging projects  
 

C. Approval of settlement proposal with regards to Workers Compensation case  
 

D. Authorization to schedule a public hearing for June 20, 2016, for purposes of hearing a variance 
request for Mateer Properties, LLC  

 
E. Approval of a special event request from The Bridge Bar regarding temporary operation of a 

food truck on their premises  
 

F. Approval for purchase of two temporary speed humps to be located on Tibet Drive and Tiger 
Point Golf Course 

 
 

*These are items considered routine in nature and will be considered by one motion.  
If any citizen wishes to voice an opinion on one of the items, you should advise the 
Council immediately. 

 



May 16, 2016, Regular Meeting Agenda 
Page 2 
 
 

  If any person decides to appeal any decisions made with respect to any matter considered at this 
meeting or public hearing, such person may need to insure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is 
made, which record includes the testimony and any evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. The 
public is invited to comment on matters before the City Council upon seeking and receiving recognition 
from the Chair.   If you are a person with a disability who needs accommodation in order to participate 
in a public hearing you are entitled to the provision of certain assistance.  Please contact the City 
Clerk’s office at (850) 934-5115 or at 1070 Shoreline Drive, Gulf Breeze at least one (1) week prior to 
the date of the public hearing.  
 
 

6. ACTION AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
A. Approval of Traffic Calming Policy and Guidelines 

 
B. Recommendation from City Investment Committee 

 
 

7. NEW ITEMS  
 
 
8. INFORMATION ITEMS 
  
 
9. PUBLIC FORUM  
 

 
10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                            
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											April	18,	2016	 Page	1	
 

The 1,295th Regular Meeting of the Gulf Breeze City Council, Gulf Breeze, Florida, was held at 
Gulf Breeze City Hall on Monday, May 2, 2016, at 6:30 p.m.  
 
ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
Upon call of the roll the following Councilmembers were present: Councilwoman Cherry Fitch, 
Mayor Matt Dannheisser, Councilman David G. Landfair, Councilwoman Renee Bookout and 
Mayor Pro Tem Joseph B. Henderson.  
 
The City Clerk gave the invocation and led in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
Councilwoman Fitch moved for approval of the April 18, 2016, Regular Meeting minutes.  
Councilwoman Bookout seconded. The vote to approve was unanimous. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson moved for approval of the April 18, 2016, Community 
Redevelopment Meeting minutes.  Councilman Landfair seconded. The vote to approve was 
unanimous. 
 
Councilwoman Bookout moved for approval of the April 23, 2016, Information Workshop 
minutes.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote to approve was unanimous.   
 
PRESENTATION AND PROCLAMATIONS: 
  
RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES:   
 

 
        

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM(S): 
 

A. Approval of project proposal from Eagle Scout Candidate Jacob Sutton for the 
installation of a “Gaga Ball Pit” at Sunset Kids Park; and authorize reimbursement of 
costs in the amount of $1,250 at the project’s completion 

  
Reference: Director of Parks and Recreation memo dated April 21, 2016 
 
Recommendation:  That the City Council approve the Eagle Scout project proposal and 
authorize reimbursement of $1,250 at the project’s completion. 
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                            
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											April	18,	2016	 Page	2	
 

A. Approval of a Special Event Application for the 2017 Double Bridge Run  
 
Reference: Deputy Chief of Police memo dated April 6, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve the request from the Pensacola Sports 
Association to change the Double Bridge Run course.   
 

B. Approval to evaluate BB&T loan investment opportunities 
 

Reference: April 28, 2016 Executive Meeting 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council authorize the investment committee to 
evaluate the BB&T portion of the investments and look into other possible investment 
opportunities. 
 

C. Approval to pay invoice 328087 in the amount of $1,163.00 to 
Galloway/Johnson/Tompkins/Burr and Smith (GJTBS) for services rendered with regards 
to the Catawba Street right-of-way litigation 

  
 Reference: City Clerk memo dated April 7, 2016 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council approve payment of invoice 328087 in the 
amount of $1,163.00 to Galloway/Johnson/Tompkins/Burr and Smith (GJTBS) 
 

D. Approval of Development Review Board Recommendation: 
 

 The Arbors of Gulf Breeze, 50 Joachim Drive 
Request to construct a continuing care facility 

 
 Reference: Director of Community Services memo dated April 8, 2016 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council, based on the recommendations of the 
Development Review Board and the Architectural Review Board, approve The Arbors of 
Gulf Breeze project and direct staff to issue the Development Order conditioned upon the 
receipt of a photometric study of the parking lot lighting on the north side of the property 
and a revision to the stormwater plans.   
 

E. South Santa Rosa Utility Board Recommendation: 
 
Conditional Use Permit for Tiger Point 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                            
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											April	18,	2016	 Page	3	
 

 
Recommendation: The South Santa Rosa Utility Board urges the City Council to resolve 
the Conditional Use Permit for Tiger Point by September 1, 2016; and if not resolved by 
September 1st, commit to building the new Waste Water Treatment Plant on Bergren 
Road.   
 

Councilman Landfair made a motion to approve consent agenda items A through F.  
Councilwoman Fitch seconded. The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 
ACTION AGENDA ITEMS:     
 

A. Approval of stabilization and beautification of the Shoreline Drive right-of-way, south of 
Sunset Kids Park. 
 
Reference: Director of Parks & Recreation memo dated April 7, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council direct staff to proceed with this project, at a total 
project cost of $5,000.   
 

Councilwoman Fitch amended staff’s recommendation to include the addition of vegetation and 
shrubs.  Councilman Landfair seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 

 
B. Consideration of offer from J.G. Buehler & Co., for 1198 Gulf Breeze Parkway (Peyton 

Building) 
 
 Reference: Email dated April 13, 2016, to the City Manager from Kevin Hoffman 

 
Councilman Landfair made a motion to table the item until the next set of meetings.  
Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 
Mayor Dannheisser suspended the Regular Council meeting at 6:45 p.m. for the City Council to 
convene as the Board of Directors of the Community Redevelopment Agency.   The Mayor 
resumed the Regular Council meeting at 6:48 p.m. 

 
NEW BUSINESS:  None 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS:  None  
 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE                                            
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 

Regular	Council	Minutes																											April	18,	2016	 Page	4	
 

PUBLIC FORUM:      
 
Glynn Brown, 1251 Tall Pine Circle, requested the City Council to stop the proposed bridge 
project until FDOT moves the new bridge landing to the Naval Life Oaks.     
 
Matt Campbell, 404 Navy Cove, expressed his concerns regarding parking at the proposed park 
on Navy Cove.  Mr. Campbell would like to see the area left as green space.   
 
Ben Zimmern, with Galloway/Johnson/Tompkins/Burr and Smith (GJTBS), updated the Council 
on the progress of the Catawba Lawsuit. 
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 7:10 p.m.  
 
 
 

  

Leslie A. Guyer, City Clerk    Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 



MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS FOR THE 
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY	

 

CRA	Board	of	Directors	Minutes	 	 May	2,	2016	 Page	1	
 
 
 

A meeting of the Board of Directors for the Community Redevelopment Agency, Gulf Breeze, 
Florida, was convened at the Gulf Breeze City Hall Council Chambers on Monday, May 2, 2016, 
at 6:37 p.m.   
 
The following members were present: Councilwoman Cherry Fitch, Mayor Matt Dannheisser, 
Councilman David G. Landfair, Councilwoman Renee Bookout, and Mayor Pro Tem Joseph B. 
Henderson. 
    
The purpose of the meeting was for the Board of Directors of the Community Redevelopment 
Agency to consider the following:  
 
CONSENT AGENDA ITEM:* 
 

A. Approval to pay invoice 95784 in the amount of $837.50 to Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds, 
and Sheppard P.A. 
 
Reference: City Clerk memo dated April 21, 2016 
 
Recommendation:  That the City Council meet as the Board of Directors of the 
Community Redevelopment Agency on Monday, May 2, 2016, and approve payment of 
invoice no. 95784 in the amount of $837.50 to Smolker, Bartlett, Loeb, Hinds, and 
Sheppard P.A. 
 

Councilman Landfair made a motion to approve Consent Agenda Item A.  Mayor Pro Tem 
Henderson seconded. The vote for approval was unanimous. 

*These are items considered routine in nature and will be considered by one motion.  If any citizen 
wishes to voice an opinion on one of the items, you should advise the Council immediately. 
 
ACTION ITEMS:  None 
 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:  None  
 
PUBLIC FORUM: None 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 6:38 p.m. 
 
 
    
       
Leslie A. Guyer, City Clerk  Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor 

 



MINUTES OF AN INFORMAL WORKSHOP OF THE                                         
CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GULF BREEZE, FLORIDA  

 
 

Informal	Workshop	Minutes																								May	11,	2016	 Page	1	
 
 

The Gulf Breeze City Council met in an informal workshop on Wednesday, May 11, 2016, at 
5:30 p.m., at Gulf Breeze City Hall. 
 
The following Councilmembers were present: Councilwoman Renee Bookout, Councilwoman 
Cherry Fitch, Mayor Pro Tem Joseph Henderson, Councilman David G. Landfair, and Mayor 
Matt Dannheisser.   
 
Mayor Dannheisser started the meeting by explaining the purpose of the meeting was to give the 
Council a chance to discuss issues that are of concern to them outside of regularly scheduled City 
Council meetings.  They continued to discuss items on the Recap of FY 2015 and Priorities for 
2016 document provided during the April 23, 2016, workshop.   The Council asked staff to 
prepare a list of priorities to be furnished to the Council for possible modifications and then 
formal approval.   
 
   
 
 
ADJOURNMENT: Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 6:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Stephanie D. Lucas, City Clerk  Matt E. Dannheisser, Mayor   
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  MAY 11, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							MAY	11,	2016	 Page	1	
 

The Gulf Breeze City Council held an Executive Meeting at Gulf Breeze City Hall on 
Wednesday, May 11, 2016, at 6:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
Upon call of the roll the following Councilmembers were present: Councilwoman Renee 
Bookout, Councilwoman Cherry Fitch, Mayor Pro Tem Joseph B. Henderson, Councilman 
David G. Landfair, and Mayor Matt Dannheisser.       
 
PROCLAMATIONS AND PRESENTATIONS:  None 
 
ACTION AGENDA ITEMS 

 
A. Approval of Development Review Board Recommendation: 

 Charles and Carol Lee Severs, 117 Chanteclaire Circle  
Request to construct a vinyl seawall 

 
Reference: Development Review Board May 3, 2016, Minutes 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place the Development Review Board's 
recommendation on the May 16, 2016, Regular meeting agenda.  Councilman Landfair 
seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 

B. Approval of Ordinance No. 04-16 regarding corner lot setbacks 
 
Reference: Director of Community Services memo dated May 5, 2016 
 

Councilman Landfair made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the May 16, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous.   

 
C. Approval of Traffic Calming Policy and Guidelines  

 
Reference: Assistant to City Manager memo dated April 27, 2016 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve the "City of Gulf Breeze Traffic 
Calming Policy and Guidelines" document for immediate staff use.   
 

Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the May 16, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda with revisions discussed during the meeting.  Councilwoman Bookout 
seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 
 

D. Authorization to prepare a request for bids for a dredging and sand transportation firm to 
complete dredging projects  

 
Reference: City Manager memo dated May 5, 2016 
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  MAY 11, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							MAY	11,	2016	 Page	2	
 

Robert Turpin, 2 Madrid Avenue, spoke and answered questions from the Council. 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve advertising for a dredging/sand 
transportation firm to complete the three tasks outlined in memorandum referenced 
above.   

 
Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the May 16, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous. 

 
E. Approval of settlement proposal with regards to Workers Compensation case 

 
Reference: City Manager memo dated May 5, 2016  
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve a settlement of $20,000 as an offset 
against expenses paid in the Kerstan Tatro Workers Compensation case.  The settlement 
would also make the City responsible for future medical claims associated with the 
injury.    

 
Councilman Landfair made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the May 16, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 

 
F. Authorization to schedule a public hearing for June 20, 2016, for purposes of hearing a 

variance request for Mateer Properties, LLC  
   
 Reference: Director of Community Services memo dated May 5, 2016 
 

Recommendation: That the City Council set a hearing date of June 20, 2016, for the 
purpose of hearing the Mateer Properties variance request and authorize City Staff to 
provide notice of public hearing in the June 1, 2016, utility bill mailer.   
 

Councilwoman Bookout made a motion to place staff’s recommendation on the May 16, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda. Mayor Pro Tem Henderson seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous. 

 
G. Approval of a special event request from The Bridge Bar regarding temporary operation 

of a food truck on their premises 
  

Reference: Director of Community Services memo dated May 5, 2016 
 
Nick Wheatley, 408 Navarre Street, and Gabriel Hernandez, owner/operator of the food 

 truck, Tacos Mexicanos, LLC, answered questions from the Council. 
 
Jim Broscious, 284 Plantation Hill Road, owner/operator of Firehouse Subs spoke against 

 operation of the food truck. 
 
Recommendation: That the City Council approve The Bridge Bar's special event 
request to allow the operation of an itinerant food truck coinciding with the hours of 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  MAY 11, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							MAY	11,	2016	 Page	3	
 

operation of the bar on the following dates:  May 20th and 21st; May 27th and May 28th; 
and June 3rd and June 4th.   

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the May 16, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Bookout seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous. 
 

H. Approval for purchase of two temporary speed humps to be located on Tibet Drive and 
Tiger Point Golf Course  

 
Reference: Assistant to City Manager memo dated May 5, 2016  
 
Tom Naile, Chairman of the South Santa Rosa Utility System Board of Directors, asked 
how the speed humps would be funded.   He was advised that staff would use City funds 
for purchase and installation of the speed humps.   
 
Recommendation:  That the City Council approve the purchase of two rubberized speed 
humps for a total of $3,615 (shipping value may change).  The total cost of this project 
will be approximately $4,500 after signage and striping applications.  Subsequent to the 
meeting, Mr. Ford obtained a quote from Gulf Coast Traffic Engineers, Inc., who 
provided a quote in the amount of $3,000.00 for purchase and installation of two 
rubberized speed humps. Staff's recommendation would be to utilize Gulf Coast Traffic 
Engineers for purchase and installation of the two temporary speed humps. 
 

Councilwoman Fitch made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the May 16, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda and that it would be funded using City's funds.  Councilwoman Bookout 
seconded.  The vote for approval was unanimous. 

   
I. Approval to pay invoice 218654 in the amount of $7,142.28 to Vanasse Hangen Brustlin 

(VHB) for services rendered with regards to the Community Redevelopment Agency 
Master Plan Amendments 
 
Reference: City Clerk memo dated May 5, 2016 
 
Recommendation:  That the City Council meet as the Board of Directors of the 
Community Redevelopment Agency on May 16, 2016, and approve payment of invoice 
no. 218654 in the amount of $7,142.28 to Vanasse Hangen Brustlin (VHB). 
 
The Council asked that they be provided an update as to completion of the work.   
 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the May 16, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilman Landfair seconded.  The vote for approval was 
unanimous. 

 
J. Recommendation from City Investment Committee  

 
Reference: City Manager gave a verbal report 
 



EXECUTIVE MEETING MINUTES  MAY 11, 2016 

EXECUTIVE	MEETING	MINUTES																							MAY	11,	2016	 Page	4	
 

The City Manager advised that the Investment Committee met following the City 
Council's receipt of the performance of the two investment portfolios and its 
recommendation that the Investment Committee reevaluate the placement of the BB&T 
portfolio.  The Investment Committee presented the following two recommendations for 
the Council's consideration: 
 
1. Move the funds currently in the BB&T portfolio to the FS Advisors portfolio; and 
 
2.  Authorize staff to prepare a request for proposals seeking an investment firm to 
manage the investments now managed by BB&T.   
 
The City Manager would recommend the second recommendation.   
 

Mayor Pro Tem Henderson made a motion that both portfolios be considered within the request 
for proposals.  He later withdrew his motion.  

 
Councilwoman Bookout made a motion to place staff's recommendation on the May 16, 2016, 
Regular meeting agenda.  Councilwoman Fitch seconded.  The vote for approval was 4-1 with 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson dissenting.   

 
NEW ITEMS: None 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS: None  
 
 PUBLIC FORUM:   
 
Jim Cox, 423 Williamsburg Drive, advised the Council that the Gulf Breeze and Pensacola 
Beach Chambers of Commerce recently held the first ever Summer Job Fair at the high school.  
There were eleven businesses that participated and sixty positions were filled.  The businesses 
were very pleased with the quality of students that attended the Job Fair.  
 
Robert Turpin, Marine Resource Manager for Escambia County, 3363 West Park Place, 
Pensacola, advised that he is spearheading a NRDA grant focused on the Pensacola Beach 
Fishing Bridge for both the north and south facilities and asked for a letter of support from the 
City Council.  The project will include (i) analysis of the structure for improvements and repairs.  
There are some pilings missing and structural decay; (ii) funding for structural improvements 
and facility improvements; and (iii) ADA accessibility for the Southside portion of the facility.  
Mayor Dannheisser asked that Mr. Turpin provide materials to City staff so they can present it to 
the Council once everything is complete. 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Henderson asked if staff would provide a memo to the Council regarding annual 
amounts that were invested and the management fees paid annually to those entities.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  Mayor Dannheisser adjourned the meeting at 7:20 p.m. 
 















 

1 | P a g e   

City of Gulf Breeze Traffic Calming Policy and Guidelines 
1.0 Traffic Calming Approach Summary: 

The primary purpose of the policy is to inform residents about the processes for implementing measures 
to improve traffic conditions on residential streets.  When traffic problems such as speeding and 
unnecessary cut through traffic become a routine occurrence, public safety and the preservation of 
“hometown character” could be compromised.  The City’s goal in the City of Gulf Breeze Traffic Calming 
Policy is to give residents and individuals who live in areas that experience traffic problems the 
opportunity to become involved in the planning and decision-making process.  While traffic calming 
devices have been in use for many years, research on effective “traffic calming” methods is a relatively 
new practice.  The City of Gulf Breeze uses the Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE) definition for 
traffic calming: 
“Traffic calming is the combination of mainly physical measures that reduce the negative effects of 
motor vehicle use, alter driver behavior and improve conditions for non-motorized street users.” 

1.2 Objectives: 
The overall objectives in City of Gulf Breeze Traffic Calming Policy and Guidelines include: 
 

A. Maintaining and/or improving neighborhood livability by mitigating the impact of vehicular 
traffic on residential neighborhoods; 

B. Promoting safe and attractive streets that maintain and/or improve the quality of life in 
neighborhoods; 

C. Promoting conditions that provide safe neighborhoods for motorists, bicyclists, pedestrians and 
residents of the neighborhood while maintaining access to the neighborhood; 

D. Minimizing “cut-through” traffic in neighborhoods; 
E. Encouraging citizen involvement in all phases of neighborhood traffic calming activities; 
F. Making efficient use of City resources by prioritizing traffic calming requests; and 
G. Supporting the elements identified and goals contained within the City of Gulf Breeze Master 

Plan. 
 

1.3 Definitions: 
A. Arterial Street – A heavily traveled street of considerable continuity used primarily as a main 

traffic artery. 
B. Local Street – Any two lane street with a primary purpose of providing direct access to 

residential properties. 
C. Collector Street – Any street which links an arterial street with another collector or local street. 
D. Residential Cut-Through Traffic – traffic which uses local or collector streets to travel through a 

residential neighborhood without having an origin or destination within the neighborhood. 
E. Street Segment – An area of a street that lies between logical features such as major 

thoroughfares, changes in land use, major driveway entrances, or changes in geographical 
features. 



 

2 | P a g e   

F. 85th Percentile Speed - The 85% percentile speed is the speed exceeded by the fastest 15% of 
vehicles. 

This policy addresses residential local and collector streets.  Residential local streets make up the 
majority of the city’s street system.  These streets serve local circulation needs for motor vehicle, 
bicycle, and pedestrian traffic and provide access to residences and some businesses.  Local service 
streets are not intended to carry significant volumes of through traffic.  Residential collector streets 
typically provide access from local service streets to arterial thoroughfares. Collector streets often carry 
some amounts of through traffic.  A collector street must be primarily residential to be considered in 
this policy.  Flexibility should be applied in defining “primarily residential,” and determined on a case by 
case basis by the City of Gulf Breeze staff.   Consideration of defining “primarily residential” collector 
streets should take into account land use factors such as the presence of parks and schools. 

2.0 Request, Evaluation and Plan Development 
2.1 Initiating a Request for Evaluation: 

Evaluation of the perceived traffic problem streets will be focused to street segments. A street segment 
can be added to the list of streets to be studied for potential traffic calming in a number of ways: 

A. A resident or group of residents contacts the City directly to express their concerns. The City 
representative provides the resident or group with a Traffic Calming Questionnaire  that will 
allow the resident to outline the perceived traffic problem. The residents should include in their 
submission an overview of how the perceived traffic problem relates to concerns such as vehicle 
safety, pedestrian safety, congestion, environmental impact, speeding or cut-through traffic; 

B. A recommendation to evaluate is made by a member of the City Council; 
C. The Gulf Breeze Police Department recommends the addition of a street segment to be 

considered based upon its enforcement efforts; or 
D. City staff initiates an evaluation based on field observations. 

 
2.2 Problem Evaluation 

After review of the initial request for evaluation, the City will inspect the street segment(s), review the 
city ordinances to determine the established speed limit and define impact area or street segment(s).   
Street segments impacted will be defined as: 

A. Every lot/parcel having frontage on the street segments within the project area, and 
B. Every lot/parcel on cross streets up to the next major intersecting street that must use the 

project street as primary access. 
The City will submit a recommendation to the City Council for consideration.  If the recommendation is 
approved, the City will proceed with collecting traffic volume and speed data using electronic traffic 
recorders over a period of days.  Depending on the problem issue, the following data may be collected: 

A. Speed data to determine the 85th percentile speed as well as the median speed and average 
speed; 



 

3 | P a g e   

B. The volume of street segment traffic per a typical day, including weekday and weekends if 
necessary; and 

C. Peak traffic data to determine the specific times of day when traffic speeds are higher. 
 

2.3 Post Evaluation 
Following the collection of data, City staff will make a recommendation to the City Council on whether 
the reported issue warrants developing a plan for traffic calming solutions. City staff may include 
recommendations for immediate or traditional responses and considerations for long term traffic 
calming solutions.  
      2.4   Plan Development 
Citizen participation is essential in developing a plan for traffic calming.  After approval to move forward 
to develop a plan for calming solutions, proposed solutions will be presented to the City Council for 
consideration within a published City Council meeting for public hearing.  If it is determined that long 
term traffic calming solutions are the best response, and the solutions are approved by City Council, 
then a petition process will be requested from the resident originator or group of residents completing 
the Traffic Calming Questionnaire. (Link)  

2.5 Immediate Response 
Recommendations for immediate strategies should be considered when applicable and could offer 
further interpretation of the data derived in the evaluation period.  The following could be acceptable 
immediate or interim responses: 

A. Police enforcement; 
B. Speed display signage; 
C. Awareness campaigns; and 
D. Low-cost traffic control device changes (temporary speed humps, rumble strips, striping, etc). 

 
2.6 Long Term Traffic Calming Solutions 

If a long-term traffic calming solution requiring construction is approved, the following criteria may be 
important in consideration of adopted measures:  

A. Impact on emergency response time; 
B. Impact on school transportation;  
C. Impact on business traffic circulation; and 
D. Street grades or alignment yielding inadequate stopping site distance. 

School authorities should be consulted in any proposed process of traffic calming solutions if a school 
route is considered. 

3.0 Petitions and Cost Share: 



 

4 | P a g e   

When a proposed solution is approved by the City Council, the resident or group of residents originating 
the request will be given a petition package to be dispersed to the defined street segment(s) residents.  
The petition package includes the name and address of each of the property owners or residents in the 
defined street segment(s) as well as the description of the proposed solution. The petition package can 
be picked up by the resident originator at City Hall.   
Petitions must be delivered by the resident originator in a legally acceptable manner.  A positive 
response must be obtained by eighty-five (85%) percent or more of the property owners or residents in 
the defined street segment(s).  Only one signature per household will be accepted.  Percentages will be 
calculated, based on individual lots/parcels where the owners sign positively, divided by the total 
number of lots/parcels in the street segment(s). The petition package must be returned within three 
months after the date of approval by the City Council by the resident originator. 
Roadway changes that influence traffic calming can result in costly construction.  The Gulf Breeze City 
Council establishes an annual budget which may include funding for traffic calming construction.  Once 
the annual budget has been fully encumbered for a given budget year, the following alternatives are left 
as options for residents who desire traffic calming measures. 

A. Waiting list (for next budget year); or 
B. Cost share assessment of residents within the affected street segment. 

For a resident originating request requiring a cost share, the City will fund 50% of the cost, and residents within the affected street segment will fund 50% of the cost necessary for construction of the device(s).   During the petitioning phase, City staff will advise all residents within the defined street segment(s) of the requirements of the cost share assessment.   4.0 Implementation: 
With approval of the plan by the affected residents in the defined street segment and the City Council, 
funding of 50% of the construction costs from resident originating plans, City staff will initiate the design 
and implementation process for the proposed traffic calming measures. 

5.0 Measuring Effectiveness: 
All installed solutions will be monitored by the City for desired effectiveness.  Evaluation may include 
resident and motorist reaction, field observation, traffic counts, speed study, and other data collection 
as needed.  If the solution has not met the intent, then a report will be submitted by staff to the City 
Manager for presentation to the City Council. 

6.0 Removal of Traffic Calming Solutions: 
Removal of any Traffic Calming solution will be considered 12 months after deployment or construction 
of the solution and after a new petition with eighty-five (85%) percent response for removal is approved 
by the City Council.  If field conditions have changed, removal of the device can also occur, as 
recommended by the City and approval of the City Council.  As in installation, the City will fund 50% of 
the cost, and residents within the affected street segment will fund 50% of the cost necessary for 
removal of the device(s).   
































































































	May 16 2016 Regular Meeting
	May 2 2016 REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
	May 2 2016 CRA MEETING MINUTES
	MAY 11 2016 COUNCIL  INFORMAL WORKSHOP
	May 11 2016 Executive Meeting Minutes
	Ordinance No. 04-16
	Speed Hump - Tibet Drive Addendum
	Traffic Calming Policy Revised
	City Investment Committee Followup

